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Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2024

As Management of the Authority, we offer readers of the Authority's financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Authority's
financial statements as presented' elsewhere in this report.

A -Financial Highliqhts

1- The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$39,565,615 (net position) as opposed to $32,815,200 for the prior fiscal year.

2 — As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority's Proprietary Fund reported an ending
Unrestricted Net Position surplus of $13,934,855.

3 —The Authority's cash and cash equivalent balances at June 30, 2024 were $37,936,408, representing
an increase of $1,065,192 from the prior fiscal year.

4 —The Authority had Total Operating Revenues of $22,144,527 and Total Operating Expenses of
$22,897,955 (including depreciation of $2,009,650) for the year ended June 30, 2024.

5 —The Authority's total capital outlays for the fiscal year were $4,842,020.

6 —The Authority's Expenditures of Federal Awards amounted to $16,133,010 for the fiscal year.

B — Usinq the Annual Report

1 — Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority's
financial statements. The Authority's Financial Statements and Notes to Financial Statements included in
this Report were prepared in accordance with GAAP applicable to governmental entities in the United
States of America for Proprietary Fund types.

2 —Financial Statements

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority's finances,
in a manner similar to aprivate-sector business. They consist of the Comparative Statements of Net
Position, the Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows.

The Comparative Statements of Net Position present information on all the Authority's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Increases or decreases in net
position will serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or
deteriorating.

The Comparative Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present information
showing how the Authority's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of unrelated cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e,g.; depreciation and earned but unused
vacation leave).

The Comparative Statements of Cash Flows present information showing how the Authority's cash and
cash equivalents position changed during the year. The statements classify cash receipts and cash
payments as resulting from operating activities, capital and related financing activities and investing
activities.



Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2024

2 —Financial Statements (Continued

The financial statements report on the Authority's activities. The activities are primarily supported by HUD
subsidies and grants. The Authority's function is to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing to low
income populations. The financial statements can be found on pages 9 through 11.

3 — Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the financial statements. The Notes to Financial Statements can be found in this
Report after the financial statements.

4 —Supplemental Information

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, The SEFA can be found on
page 31 of this report. Supplemental Schedules pertaining to the Public Employees Retirement System
and OPEB are also presented on pages 32-35 to supplement the basic financial statements.

C —The Authority as a Whole

The Authority's Net Position increased during the fiscal year as detailed below. The Authority's revenues
are primarily subsidies and grants received from HUD. The Authority receives subsidies each month
based on apre-approved amount by HUD. Grants are drawn down based on need against a pre-
authorized funding level. The Authority's revenues were sufficient to cover all expenses, excluding
depreciation during the fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of the Authority's net position reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress). The Authority uses these capital assets to
provide housing services to its tenants. Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

D — Budgetary Highliqhts

For the year ended June 30, 2024 individual program or grant budgets were prepared by the Authority
and were approved by the Board of Commissioners. The budgets were primarily used as a management
tool and have no legal stature. The budgets were prepared in accordance with the accounting procedures
prescribed by the applicable funding agency.

E —Capital Assets and Debt Administration

1 —Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2024, the Authority's net investment in capital assets for its Proprietary Fund was
$25,622,274 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
equipment and construction in progress. Major capital assets purchased from capital grants of $4,806,528
during the fiscal year pertained to expenditures made in accordance with the Authority's Capital Fund
Programs. These activities are funded by grants from HUD. Additional informational on the Authority's
capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the Financial Statements which is included in this Report.



Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2024

E —Capital Assets and Debt Administration (Continued)

2 — Lona Term Debt

The Authority does not have any long-term debt outstanding at this time.

F —Significant Changes from FYE June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024

Changes in the Statement of Net Position

Cash and other current assets increased $1,121,232, or 2.9%, primarily because cash increased
$1, 065,192.

Net fixed assets increased $2,832,370, or 12.4%, during the current fiscal year. The Authority had
$4,842,020 of net fixed asset additions and incurred $2,009,650 of depreciation expense.

Deferred Outflow of Resources increased $2,561,534, or 64.4%, based on the most recent other post-
retirement benefits (OPEB) liability and pension liability actuarial reports provided by the State of New
Jersey.

Changes in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Tenant revenues increased $779,725, or 11.1 %. The low rent public housing program unit months leased
increased by 287 when compared to the prior fiscal year.

Other revenues increased $289,892, or 10.7%, primarily because of a significant increase in the housing
choice voucher program portability revenue.

Operating expenses excluding depreciation expense increased $1,513,415, or 7.8%. Housing assistance
payments (HAP) increased $869,588. The housing choice voucher and mainstream voucher programs
unit months leased increased 262 compared the prior fiscal year. In addition, total employee benefits
expenses increased $489,581 mainly because of the most recent pension and OPEB liability actuarial
valuations.

Interest income increased $1,030,507, or 203.9%, due to higher bank interest rates.

Capital Grants increased by $3,901,695, as the Authority had numerous large capital projects during the
current fiscal year including electrical upgrades, lobby upgrades, plumbing improvements and concrete
improvements.

Prior period adjustments increased $225,266, or 24.1 %due to the other post-retirement benefits (OPEB)
liability and pension liability actuarial adjustments provided by the State of New Jersey.

G —Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority's budget for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2025

1 —The state of the economy, particularly its effect on tenant incomes, which are used in determining
tenant rents paid to the Authority.

2 —The need for Congress to reduce funding for HUD programs due to the current fiscal crisis and federal
budget deficits.
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Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2024

H —Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all those with
an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Housing Authority of the City of
Bayonne, P.O. Box 277, Bayonne, New Jersey 07002, or call (201) 339-8700.

4



Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Management's Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2024

Composition of Net Position is as follows:

Cash and Other Current Assets
Net Fixed Assets
Notes Receivable
Deferred Outflow of Resources

Total Assets and Def. Outflow of Resources

Less: Total Liabilities
Less: Deferred Inflow of Resources

Year Ended
June 30,'2024 June 30, 2023 Variance % Var
$ 39,954,149 $ 38,832,917 $ 1,121,232 2.9°/a
25,622,274 22,789,904 2,832,370 12.4%

310,042 310,042 - 0,0%
6,538,341 3,976,807 2,561,534 64.4%

72,424,806 65,909,670 6,515,136 9.9%

(22,435,426) (22,769,169) 333,743 -1.5%
(10,423,765) (10,325,301) (98,464) 1.0%

Total Net Position $ 39,565,615 $ 32,815,200 $ 6,750,415 20.6%

Net Investment in Capital Assets 25,622,274 22,789,904 2,832,370 12.4%
Restricted Net Position 8,786 - 8,786 100.0%
Unrestricted Net Position 13,934,855 10,025,296 3,909,559 39.0%

Total Net Position $ 39,565,915 $ 32,815,200 $ 6,750,715 20.6°0

Computations of Changes in Net Position are as follows:

Revenues
Tenant Revenues
HUD Operating Grants
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Expenses
Operating Expenses (Excl. Dep.)
Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Excess of Operating Revenues

Over Expenses

Year Ended
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 Variance % Var

$ 7,811,525 $ 7,031,800 $ 779,725 11.1%
11,326,482 11,386,715 (60,233) -0.5%
3,006,520 2,716,628 289,892 10.7%

22,144,527 21,135,143 1,009,384 4.8%

20,888,305 19,374,890 1,513,415 7.8%
2,009,650 2,027,532 (17,882) -0.9%

22,897,955 21,402,422 1,495,533 7.0%

(753,428) (267,279) (486,149) 181.9%

Non-Operating Revenues
Interest on Investments

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenses
Before Capital Grants Received

Capital Grants
HUD Capital Grants

Excess Revenues/(Deficiency)
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position -Beginning Balance

1,536,000 505,493 1,030,507 203.9%

782,572 238,214 544,358 228.5%

4,806,528 904,833 3,901,695 431.2%

5,589,100 1,143,047 4,446,053 389.0%
1,161,315 936,049 225,266 24.1%
32,815,200 30,736,104 2,079,096 6.8%

Net Position -Ending Balance $ 39,565,615 $ 32,815,200 $ 6,750,415 20.6%
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Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Bayonne, New Jersey
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Net Position, Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position, and Cash Flows of the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne, as of and for the years ended June
30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Housing
Authority of the City of Bayonne's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

I n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position of
the Authority as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

C~
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 1-5 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Financial Data
Schedule, Statement and Certification of Completed Modernization Grants, and supporting schedules of the
Authority's portion of the Public Employees Retirement Systems (PERS) and Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB) liabilities are presented for additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the financial data schedule, and the
statement and certification of completed modernization grants are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

I n accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 14, 2025 on
our consideration of the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Housing
Authority of the City of Bayonne's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

~~~ ~ ,, I~

POLCARI &COMPANY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Wayne, New Jersey
January 14, 2025
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
Bayonne, New Jersey

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
At June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents -Unrestricted
Cash and Cash Equivalents -Restricted
Accounts Receivable -Tenants (Net)
Accounts Receivable -HUD
Accounts Receivable -Other Government
Accounts Receivable Miscellaneous
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

FIXED ASSETS
Land
Buildings
Furniture, Equipment and Machinery
Leasehold Improvements
Construction in Progress

Total Fixed Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Fixed Assets

Notes, Loans, &Mortgages Receivable -Non-Current
Deferred Outflow of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

June 30, 2024

37,927,622
8,786

954,129
14,541

129,518

919,553

39,954,149

1,506,843
89,693,890
694,167

4,464,985
7,538,804

103,898,689
(78,276,415)

25,622,274

310, 042
6,538,341

$ 72,424,806

June 30, 2023

$ 36,871,216

893,481
31,802
92,598
86,808
857,012

38,832,917

1,506,843
89,693,890
658,675

4,464,985
2,732,276

99,056,669
(76,266,765)

22,789,904

310, 042
3,976,807

$ 65,909,670

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable:
Vendors and Contractors $ 324,351 $ 620,078
Accrued Payroll and Related Taxes 283,846 278,824

Due to Tenants:

Security Deposits

Unearned Revenue
Due to Other Governments
Compensated Absences -Current Portion

Total Current Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences -Noncurrent
Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

6,366

97,143
441, 972
43,874

1,197,552
394,870

20,843,004

22,435,426

10,423,765

25,622,274
8,786

13,934,555

$ 39,565,615

2,901

616,879
948,370
40,857

2,507,909
367,719

19,893,541

22,769,169

10,325,301

22,789,904

10,025,296

$ 32,815,200

See Notes to Financial Statements.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
Bayonne, New Jersey

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUE EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

OPERATING REVENUES
Total Tenant Revenue
HUD Grants -Operating
Other Government Grants
Other

Total Operating Revenues

For the Year Ended

June 30, 2024

$ 7,811,525
11,326,482

86,506
2,920,014

22,144,527

For the Year Ended

June 30. 2023

$ 7,031,800
11,386,715

94,426
2,622,202

21,135.143

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Tenant Services
Utilities
Ordinary Maintenance &Operations
Protective Services
General Expense
Housing Assistance Payments
Depreciation Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Excess of Operating Revenues Over Expenses

NON OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES)
Interest Income

Income/(Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers

Capital Grants

Increase/(Decrease) In Net Position

Beginning Net Position

Prior Period Adjustments

Ending Net Position

2,753,164
1,304,645
3,404,282
4,649,751

176,459
1,792,025
6,807,979
2,009,650

22,897.955

(753,428)

1,536,000

782,572

4,806,528

5,589,100

32,815,200

1,161,315

$ 39,565,615

2,343,679
1,134,651
3,789,117
4,129,992
242,158

1,796,902
5,938,391
2,027,532

21,402,422

(267,279)

505,493

238,214

904,833

1,143,047

30,736,104

936,049

$ 32,815,200

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
Bayonne, New Jersey

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FORM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received:

From Tenants for Rental &Other Revenue $ 7,231,141 $ 7,707,573
From Government Agencies for Operating Grants 11,393,329 11,428,131
For Other Operating Revenues 3,006,822 3,207,673

Cash Paid:
To Employees for Operations (3,674,142) (3,652,279)
To Suppliers for Operations (11,587,950) (10,203,493)
For Housing Assistance Payments (6,807,979) (5,938,391)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities (438,779) 2,549,214

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Grants Received 4,806,528 904,833
Acquisition of Property and Equipment (4,842,020) (904,833)
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and Related Financing ~ (35,492) -

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt/(Refund) of Security Deposits 3,463 390
Investment Income 1,536,000 505,493
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,539,463 505,883

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,065,192 3,055,097
Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Period 36,871,216 33,816,119
Cash and Equivalents at End of Period $ 37,936,408 $ 36,871,216

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash
Provided/(Used) by Operations

Operating Income/(Loss) $ (753,428) $ (267,279)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) to Net
Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities

Depreciation 2,009,650 2,027,532
Decrease/(Increase) in Assets
Accounts Receivable -Tenants (Net) (60,648) 149,521
Accounts Receivable -HUD and Other Governments (19,659) (53,010)
Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous 86,808 585,471
Inventory - 70 205
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets (62,541) (40,155)
Deferred Outflow of Resources (2,561,534) 105,147

Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable (295,725) (4,381)
Accrued Payroll 5 022 26 885
Unearned Revenue (519,736) 526,252
Due to Other Governments (506,398) 322,601
Compensated Absences 30,168 (17,670)
Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities 2,110,778 335,166
Deferred Inflow of Resources 98,464 (1,217,071)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (438,779) $ 2,549,214

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 —Summary of Organization, Activities and Significant Accounting Policies:

1. Organization and Activities —The Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne (the Authority) is a
governmental, public corporation created under the laws of the state of New Jersey to provide housing for
qualified individuals in accordance with rules and regulations prescribed by the United States Department
of Housing and Urban Development. The Authority is governed by a board of Commissioners which is
essentially autonomous but is responsible to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
and the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. An executive director is appointed by the
housing authority's Board to manage the day-to-day operations of the Authority. The Authority is
responsible for the development, maintenance and management of public housing for low and moderate
income families residing in the city of Bayonne. The housing authority also acts as Redevelopment
Agency, performing redevelopment activities and services within the city of Bayonne. Operating and
modernization subsidies are provided to the Authority by the federal government.

The combined financial statements include all the accounts of the Authority. The Authority is the lowest
level of government over which the Authority's Board of Commissioners and Executive Director exercise
oversight responsibility. The Authority is not included in any Governmental "reporting entity" since its
board members, while they are appointed primarily by the mayor, have decision making authority, the
power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly influence operations, and primary
responsibility for accounting and fiscal matters. The Authority has not identified any entities which should
be subject to evaluation for inclusion in the Authority's reporting entity.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Accounting —The financial statements of the Authority are prepared using the accrual basis
of accounting in order to recognize the flow of economic resources. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, transactions are recognized when they occur, regardless of when cash is received or
disbursed. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become
measurable, and expenses recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. Operating revenues and
expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from the ongoing principal operations of the
Authority. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are
related to financing and investing types of activities and result from non-exchange transactions or
ancillary activities. All assets, liabilities, net assets, revenue and expenses are accounted for using a
single enterprise fund for the primary government.

Revenue —The major sources of revenue are subsidies and grants received from the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development, charges to tenants and other miscellaneous revenues.

Federal Grant Revenue —Operating subsidies, Section Eight housing assistance grants and Capital Fund
Program revenue received from HUD are recorded under the accrual method of accounting and are
recognized in the period earned in accordance with applicable HUD guidelines. The Authority is generally
entitled to receive funds from HUD under an established payment schedule or as expenditures are made
under the Capital Fund Program or Comprehensive Improvements Assistance Program. Under the
Section Eight Program, a year- end settlement is no longer computed, and the overfunded or
underfunded amount, if any, is considered to be available for future use. Advance payments received for
the subsequent fiscal year are recorded as deferred revenue.

Tenant Charges —Rental charges to tenants are determined and billed monthly and are recognized as
revenue when billed since they are measurable and collectible within the current period. Amounts not
collected at year-end are included in the balance sheet as accounts receivable, and amounts paid by
tenants for the subsequent fiscal year are recorded as deferred revenue.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 —Summary of Organization, Activities and Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'inued):

Miscellaneous Revenue —Miscellaneous revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service fees. The
revenue is recorded as earned since it is measurable and available.

b. Report Presentation —The financial statements included in this Report were prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America applicable to
governmental entities for Proprietary Fund Types. The Authority implemented the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 "Basic Financial Statements and
Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments" (Statement No. 34). The
Authority also implemented GASB Statement No. 61 "Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position." This Statement requires the classification of
net assets into three components -Net Investment in Capital Assets, Restricted Net Position and
Unrestricted Net Position. These classifications are defined as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets —This component consists of land, construction in progress and
depreciable assets, net of accumulated depreciation and net of the related debt outstanding. If there are
significant unspent related debt proceeds as of year-end, the portion of the debt related to the unspent
proceeds is not included in the calculation of Invested in Net Investment in Capital Assets. Rather, that
portion of the debt is included in the same net asset component as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted Net Position —This component includes net assets subject to restrictions placed on net asset
use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by the law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position —This component consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of
Restricted Net Position or Net Investment in Capital Assets,

The adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 34, 37 and 38 and 61 have no
significant effect on the basic financial statements, except for the classification of net assets in
accordance with Statement No, 61.

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

1 —Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market. Cash and cash
equivalents include cash in banks, petty cash and certificates of deposit and other investments with
original maturities of less than three months from the date of purchase. Investments are recorded at fair
value based on quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

2 —Collection losses on accounts receivable are charged against an allowance for doubtful accounts.

3 —Buildings and equipment are recorded at cost for all programs and depreciation is computed on the
straight-line basis. Interest costs necessary to place a Capital Asset in its intended location and condition
are capitalized.

4 —Repairs funded out of operations, such as painting, roofing and plumbing, are charged against income
for all programs.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 —Summary of Organization, Activities and Significant Accounting Policies IContinuedl:

5 —The Authority is subsidized by the Federal Government. The Authority is not subject to Federal or
State income taxes, nor is it required to file Federal and State income tax returns.

6 —Operating subsidies received form HUD are recorded as income when earned.

7 —The cost of accumulated unpaid compensated absences, including fringe benefits, is reported in the
period earned rather than in the period paid.

8 —Prepaid expenses represent payments made by the Authority in the current year to provide services
occurring in the subsequent fiscal year.

9 —Inventories in the Proprietary Fund consist of supplies and are recorded at the lower of first-in first-
out, cost or market.

10 -The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.

1 1 -The Authority has elected not to apply to its proprietary activities Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee of Accounting Procedure issued after November 30, 1989.

12 —The Authority does not have any infrastructure assets for its Proprietary Fund.

13 —Inter-fund receivables and payables arise from inter-fund transactions and are recorded by all funds
affected in the period in which the transactions are executed.

14 —Long lived assets to be held and used are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment
losses on assets to be held and used are recognized based on the fair value of the asset and long-lived
assets to be disposed of by sale are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to
sell. As of June 30, 2024, the Authority has not recognized any reduction in the carrying value of its fixed
assets when considering AU 360.

c. Budgetary Policy Control —The housing authority submits its annual operating and capital budgets
to the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs in accordance with New Jersey statute.
After the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs approves the budget, it is formally adopted by
resolution of the Housing Authority's Board of Commissioners. Once adopted, the Board of
Commissioners may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in
estimated revenues and expenses. Each fund's budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis.
Revenues are budgeted by source and expenditures are budgeted by expense classification within each
revenue source. Redevelopment Activities of the housing authority are controlled and reported to the
New Jersey Department of Community Affairs in budgets and financial statements separate and distinct
from other activities of the housing authority.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 —Summary of Organization, Activities and Significant Accountina Policies (Continued):

d. New Accounting Pronouncements -The Authority was required to adopt GASB Statement 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions which requires employers to recognize their
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability, collective deferred outflows of resources,
collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense excluding that attributable to
employer-paid member contributions. Additional information regarding the adoption of GASB 68 can be
found in Note 13 to these financial statements. On July 1, 2021, the Authority was required to adopt
Governmental Accounting Standards Board No. 87, Leases. GASB 87 establishes a single model for
lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.
Under GASB 87, the lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and deferred inflow of resources.

NOTE 2 —Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents of $37,936,408 and $36,871,216 at June 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively,
consisted of the following:

June 30, 2024 June 30. 2023
Checking Accounts $ 37,923,931 $ 36,867,990
Restricted Cash 8,786 -
Tenant Pet Deposit Accounts 3,366 2,901
Petty Cash Fund 325 325
Total Cash and Equivalents $ 37,936,408 $ 36,871,216

The Authority maintains cash and investments in local banks. The carrying amount of the Authority's
cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2024 was $37,936,408 and the bank balances were
$39,965,843. Of the bank balances, $250,000 was covered by FDIC insurance and $39,715,843 was
covered collateral agreements, which require the institutions to purchase securities as collateral for all of
the Authority's deposits and have the collateral held by an approved custodian in the Authority's name.
Cash and cash equivalents, except petty cash, are held in the Authority's name.

NOTE 3 —Tenant Accounts Receivable

Tenant accounts receivable, stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, are $954,129 and
$893,481 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Based on discussions with management, the authority
plans to collect the vast majority of the balance.

NOTE 4 —Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable

Miscellaneous accounts receivable represents fee and cost reimbursements due from not-for-profit
corporations owning properties managed by the Housing Authority. At June 30, 2024, the Authority had
$0 miscellaneous accounts receivable. At June 30, 2023, the Authority was owed $86,808 from
Bridgeview Manor.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 5 -Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist primarily of expenditures to acquire, construct, place in operation and improve the
facilities of the Authority and are stated at cost. The following is a summary of the changes in general
fixed assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

July 1, 2023 Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2024

Land $ 1,506,843 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,506,843
Buildings and Improvements 94,158,875 - - - 94,158,875
Furniture and Equipment 658,675 35,492 - - 694,167
Construction in Progress 2,732,276 4,806,528 - - 7,538,804
Total Fixed Assets 99,056,669 4,842,020 - - 103,898,689
Accumulated Depreciation (76,266,765) (2,009,650) - - (78,276,415)
Net Fixed Assets $ 22,789,904 $ 2,832,370 $ - $ - $ 25,622,274

July 1, 2022 Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2023

Land $ 1,506,843 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,506,843
Buildings and Improvements 91,434,860 - - 2,724,015 94,158,875
Furniture and Equipment 658,675 - - - 658,675
Construction in Progress 4,551,457 904,833 - (2,724,015) 2,732,276
Total Fixed Assets 98,151,835 904,833 - - 99,056,669
Accumulated Depreciation (74,239,233) (2,027,532) - - (76,266,765)
Net Fixed Assets $ 23,912,602 $ (1,122,699) $ - $ - $ 22,789,904

Expenditures are capitalized when they meet the Authority's Capitalization Policy requirements. Under
that policy, assets purchased or constructed at a cost not exceeding $1,000 are expensed when incurred.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based upon the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40
Site Improvements 15
Furniture 10
Vehicles 7
Equipment 5

NOTE 6 —Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT)

Under Federal, State and local law, the Authority's programs are exempt form income, property and
excise taxes. However, the Authority is required to make a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) for the PHA
Owned Program in accordance with the provisions of its Cooperation Agreement with the City of
Bayonne. Under the Cooperation Agreement, the Authority must pay the municipality the lesser of 10%
of its net shelter rent or the approximate full real property taxes. During the fiscal years ended June 30,
2024 and June 30, 2023, PILOT expense of $441,972 and $322,601 respectively, was accrued. The total
PILOT liability at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $441,972 and $948,370 respectively.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 7 —Accrued Compensated Absences

Employees are entitled to unused sick days at retirement if employed by the Authority for a minimum of
25 years and have at least 100 unused sick days at the time of retirement. All eligible employees are
entitled to receive one day's pay at the rate paid at retirement for every three days of unused sick leave
up to a maximum of $15,000. Vacation days may be carried forward for a maximum of two years and are
then lost if not used. The Authority determined that the potential liability for accumulated vacation and
sick time as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $438,744 and $408,576, respectively.

NOTE 8 —Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Authority carries commercial insurance.
During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Authority's risk management program, in order to
deal with potential liabilities, consisted of various insurance policies for fire, general liability, crime, auto
and public officials errors and omissions. Periodically, but not less than once annually, the Authority
conducts a physical inspection of its Projects for the purpose of determining potential liability issues.
Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of
insurance in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 9 —Construction Commitments

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Authority's outstanding construction commitments pertaining to its
Comprehensive Grant Programs were not material. The costs pertaining to such commitments will be
paid by grants approved and committed to the Authority by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

NOTE 10 —Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position

Prior to January 1, 2005 excess funds advanced by HUD to the Authority for the payment of housing
assistance payments were returned to HUD at the end of the Authority's fiscal year. In accordance with
HUD's PIH Notice 2006-03, starting January 1, 2005 excess funds disbursed by HUD to the Authority for
the payment of Housing Assistance Payments that are not so utilized are not returned to HUD, but
become part of the undesignated fund balance and may only be used to assist additional families up to
the number of units under contract. As of November 2007, HUD is reverting to treating these funds as
restricted in order to comply with generally accepted accounting principles. HUD has indicated that any
HAP amounts received by the PHA and not expended should be reported as restricted cash and
restricted net position. Administrative fees paid by HUD to the Authority in excess of administrative
expenses are also part of the unrestricted fund balance and are considered to be "administrative fee
reserves". Administrative fee reserves accumulated prior to January 1, 2005 are subject to all
requirements applicable to administrative fee reserves including, but not limited to, 24 CFR982.155 — i.e.
"other housing purposes permitted by state or local law". Excess administrative fees earned in 2005 and
subsequent years must be used for activities related to the provision of tenant-based rental assistance
authorized under Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, including related development
activities. In accordance with HUD requirements, the Agency's restricted and unrestricted fund balance
consists of the following components as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 10 —Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position (Continued)

HCV Administrative Fee Reserves MS Administrative Fee Reserves
June 30, 2022 Balance $ (450,091) June 30, 2022 Balance $ -
Administrative Fee Revenue 316,200 Administrative Fee Revenue 89,836
Investment Income 9,563 Investment Income -
Fraud Recovery Revenue 10,559 Fraud Recovery Revenue -
Port-In and Other Revenue 2,491,281 Port-In and Other Revenue -
Operating Expenses (473,849) Operating Expenses (89,836)
HAP Port-In and Other Expenses (2,228,783) HAP Port-In and Other Expenses -
June 30, 2023 Balance (325,120) June 30, 2023 Balance -
Administrative Fee Revenue 353,719 Administrative Fee Revenue 64,118
Investment Income 19,736 Investment Income -
Fraud Recovery Revenue 16,122 Fraud Recovery Revenue -
Port-In and Other Revenue 2,721,619 Port-In and Other Revenue -
Operating Expenses (573,003) Operating Expenses (64,118)
HAP Port-In and Other Expenses _(2,559,521) HAP Port-In and Other Expenses -
June 30, 2024 Balance $ (346,448) June 30, 2024 Balance $ -

HCV Housing Assistance Payments fHAPI Reserves
June 30, 2022 Balance $ 27,870
HAP Revenue 3,114,803
Fraud Recovery Revenue 10,559
HAP Payments (3,153,232)

June 30, 2023 Balance -

HAP Revenue
Fraud Recovery and Other Revenue
HAP Payments

June 30, 2024 Balance

NOTE 11 —Unearned Revenue

MS Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Reserves
June 30, 2022 Balance $ 2,116
HAP Revenue 554,260
Fraud Recovery Revenue -
HAP Payments 556,376

June 30, 2023 Balance -

3,540,836 HAP Revenue
6,343 Other Expenses

(3,546,041) HAP Payments

$ 1,138 June 30, 2024 Balance

738,755
(14, 626)
716,481

$ 7,648

Total unearned revenue was $97,143 at June 30, 2024 and $616,879 at June 30, 2023. In 2024, the
entire balance represents prepaid tenant rents from the low rent public housing program. In 2023,
$82,612 represents prepaid rent from the low rent public housing program and $534,267 represents an
overpayment in operating subsidy from the low rent public housing program,
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 12 —Post Employment Retirement Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

PLAN DESCRIPTION

The Authority administers a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit postemployment health care
benefit (OPEB) plan. The Authority was required to adopt a resolution to participate in the Plan.
Coverage under the plan is available to employee spouses and benefits may continue to surviving
spouses. For additional information about the plan, please refer to the State of New Jersey (the State),
Division of Pension and Benefits' (the Division) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which
can be found at:

https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reparts.shtml.

BENEFITS PROVIDED

The Plan provides medical and prescription drugs to retirees and their covered dependents of the
Authority. Under the provisions of Chapter 88, P.L 1974 and Chapter 48, P.L 1999, the Authority elects to
provide postretirement medical coverage to its employees and must file a resolution with the Division.
Under Chapter 88, the Authority has elected to provide benefit coverage based on the eligibility rules and
regulations promulgated by the State Health Benefits Commission. Chapter 48 allows the Authority to
establish their own age and service eligibility for employer paid health benefits coverage for retired
employees. Under Chapter 48, the Authority may assume the cost of postretirement medical coverage
for employees and their dependents who: 1) retired on a disability pension; or 2) retired with 25 or more
years of service credit in a State or locally administered retirement system and a period of service of up to
25 years with the employer at the time of retirement as established by the employer; or 3) retired and
reached the age of 65 with 25 or more years of service credit in a State or locally administered retirement
system and a period of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time of retirement as
established by the employer; or 4) retired and reached age 62 with at least 15 years of service with the
employer. Further, the law provides that the employer paid obligations for retiree coverage may be
determined by means of a collective negotiations agreement.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L., 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who
have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage
of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of
pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be responsible will
be determined based on the retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

GASB Statement No. 75 requires the Authority to recognize its proportionate share of the collective net
OPEB liability, collective deferred outflows of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and
collective OPEB expense.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 12 —Post Employment Retirement Benefits (OPEB

The Authority's total other postemployment benefit ("OPEB") liability of $14,147,415 and $12,615,095 as
of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The components of the net OPEB liability are as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023
Total OPEB Liability $ 14,037,149 $ 12,569,265
Plan Fiduciary Net Position (110,267) (45,830)

Net OPEB Liability $ 14,147,415 $ 12,615,095

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
as a % of Total OPEB Liability -0.79% -0.36%

The current total OPEB liability was determined by actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022, which was
rolled forward to June 30, 2024. The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the
plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods in the measurement:

Salary Increases:
Rate for All Future Years 2.75% to 6.55% Based on Years of Service

Mortality:
Pub-2010 General classification headcount weighted mortality with fully
generation al mortality improvement projections from the central year using
Scale MP-2021

HEALTH CARE TREND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results of the PERS
experience studies prepared for July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021. 100% of active members are considered
to participate in the Plan upon retirement.

DISCOUNT RATE

The discount rate was 3.65%. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the State of
New Jersey. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-
exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term
rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount
rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 12 —Post Employment Retirement Benefits (OPEB)

SENSITIVITY OF NET OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE

The following presents the collective net OPEB liability of the Authority as of June 30, 2024, calculated
using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net OPEB liability would be if it
was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than
the current rate.

1 %Decrease Discount Rate 1 %Increase
2.65% 3.65% 4.65%

$ 16,387,216 $ 14,147,415 $ 12,345,841

SENSITIVITY TO NET OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE HEALTHCARE TREND RATE

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority as of June 30, 2024 calculated using the
healthcare trend rate as disclosed above as well as what the Authority's net OPEB liability would be if it
was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher
than the current rate:

Healthcare Cost
1 %Decrease Trend Rates 1 °/o Increase
$ 10,701,765 $ 12,615,095 $ 15,065,532

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources from the following sources.

2024

Deferred

Outflows of

Resources

Changes of assumptions $ 1,833,621

Differences between expected and actual

experience 652,406

Net differences between projected and actual

earnings on plan investments -
Changes in proportion 3,877,064

TOTAL $ 6.363.091

2024 2023 2023

Deferred Deferred Deferred

Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources

$ 3,999,021 $ 1,683,537 $ 4,305,289

3,841,976 651,457 2,338,302

2,334 3,321 -
1,698,562 1,102,880 2,266,711.

$ 9.541 893 3.441.195 8.910.30

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
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June 30, 2024

NOTE 12 —Post Employment Retirement Benefits (OPEB)

Year Ending
June 30:

2024 $ (1,605,016)
2025 (1,314,609)
2026 (711,181)
2027 (333,376)
2028 (672,935)

Thereafter (721,187)

$ (5,358,304)

NOTE 13 —Pension Plan

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description -The Authority participates in the New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS) which is sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits.
PERS is acost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefits pension plan administered by the State of
New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). PERS issues a publicly available report that
can be obtained at the following website: www.state.ni.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts.shtml.

Benefits Provided -The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical
benefits which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following
represents the membership tiers for PERS:

• Tier 1 —Members who were enrolled by July 1, 2007.
• Tier 2 —Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2,

2008.
• Tier 3 —Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22,

2010
• Tier 4 —Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011.
• Tier 5 —Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011.

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to
tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service
benefits of 1/60~h of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and to tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to
tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of
service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a
fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive
full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an
unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is
available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached service
retirement age for the respective tier.
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June 30, 2024

NOTE 13 —Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions -The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by
active members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed
by the State. The State's pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount, which
includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability.
Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For the current
fiscal year, the State's pension contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount.

The housing authority's contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate which includes
the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for local
employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified for
payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with the full payment and any
such amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded
liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability
contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual
payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

The Authority's tots net pension liability of $6,695,589 and $7,278,446 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The components of the net
pension liability are as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Total Pension Liability
Less: Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability

2024 2023
$ 19,418,245 $ 19,788,076
(12,666,207) (12,509,630)

$ 6,695,589 $ 7,278,446

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
PERS financial report.

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022, which
was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

I nflation Rate
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%

Salary Increases 2.75% -6.55%
based on age

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%
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June 30, 2024

NOTE 13 —Pension Plan (continued)

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on .a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on
the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and
117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the bases year of 2010 on a
generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

In accordance with State statute, the long term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00%) is
determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and
Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long term expected rate
of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in the PERS's target allocation are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
US Equity 28.00% 8.98%
Non US Developed Markets Equity 12.75% 9.22%

I nternational Small Cap Equity 1.25% 9.22%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 11.13%
Private Equity 13.00% 12.50%

Real Estate 8.00% 8.58%

Real Assets 3.00% 8.40%
High Yield 4.50% 6.97%

Private Credit 8.00% 9.20%

Investment Grade Credit 7.00% 5.19%
Cash Equivalents 2.00% 3.31
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 3.31%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 6.21
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 13 —Pension Plan (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine this discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made as the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the nonemployer
contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the local
employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of
return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments in determining the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the Authority calculated using the discount
rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

At 1 %Decrease Current Discount Rate At 1 %Increase
$ 8,789,717 $ 6,695,589 $ 5,017,704

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources from the following sources.

Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and actual
experience

Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments

Changes in proportion
TOTAL

2024 2024 2023 2023
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
$ 14,709 $ 405,781 $ 22,551 $ 1,089,871

64,018 27,369

30,834 -
65,689 448,722

~ 175.250 $ 881.872

52,532 46,326

301,248 -
159,281 278,804

~ 535.612 1.415.001

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding
employer specific amounts) related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2025 $ (353,502)
2026 (197,311)
2027 275,729
2028 (49,345)
2029 839

Total $ 323,589



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2024

NOTE 14 —Prior Period Adjustments

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, prior period adjustments of $1,161,315 were recorded to
adjust the Authority's OPEB and Pension liabilities per the most recent actuarial valuations.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, prior period adjustments of $936,049 were recorded to adjust
the Authority's OPEB and Pension liabilities per the most recent actuarial valuations.

NOTE 16 — Subseauent Events

Events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements were available to be
issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide
evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date are recognized in the accompanying
financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the
balance sheet date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management has evaluated
subsequent events through January 14, 2025, the date on which the financial statements were available to
be issued and concluded that no subsequent event have occurred that would require disclosure in the
notes to the financial statements.



Bayonne Housing Authority (NJ012)
BAYONNE, NJ

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit Fiscal Year End: 06/30/2024

ProJecl Tolal 1 Business ~
2

i Activities E

14.879 '
State/Local !Mainstream ;

14 g~~ Housing
Choice Vouchers COCC Subtotal ELIM Total

Vouchers
...................................................................................................................................................i,..................................~........................i............................i......................?...................................

:

: 111 Cash -Unrestricted
y..................................................................................................................................................

i X14,472,044
~...................................

i ^20,303,512 i
;......................... ~............................

i i x"404,252

i
~ ........................~..........................~..................;.........................;
p ,~p~7q~~g48 i x̂37,921,256 i

i f

$37,921,256 i 
! 112 Cash -Restricted - Modernization and Development
• ............ . .....................................................................................................:.................~

i i
~......................:...................,...............
i i

~......................., i..........................:.................. ...........................~
i i i i

113 Cash -Other Restricted
........................................... ........... ~ $7648 i $1.138

.....:........................ 
i i 8 786 

.....................~..........................; 
i "58 786 '

114 Cash -Tenant Security Deposits
..............................................................................................................................................i...................................c........................i............................i.......................i...................................j........................i.......

X3,366 ; ; ~
..... 

X3,000 
....................i........~...:..............i,.................r...........:..............,

$6,366.......x..................
i 115 Cash -Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities
i....................................................................................................................................................i...................................%........................i,...........................i....................., i

i.......'
A,6,366

.......j
i i

100 Total Cash
:. 

.................................................................................................................................................i...................................c........................~............................i.......................s...................................i........................i..........................i..................i.........................
x̂14,475,410 ŷ20,303,512 $0 87,648

... .............. ......i........................~..........................i..................d..........................;
5408,390 i g2,7g1,q48 ŷ37,936,408 i $0 i $37,936,408 i 

i
5 ..................................................................................................................................:................i................................ 
i 121 Accounts Receivable -PHA Projects 
...................................................................................................................................................i...................................5........................i............................i...................... 

.....................i............................i......................:...................................i................~.......i..........................:..................i........................,i

122 Accounts Receivable -HUD Other Projects
................................................................................................................................................. ...................................:........................:............................i.......................:...................................f........................i..........................F.................. .........................5

E j
...................................i........................i..........................2..................L.........................5

^y14,541 y14,541 $14,541 
124 Accounts Receivable -Other Government i X129,518 $129,518 $129,518

j 125 Accounts Receivable -Miscellaneous i ........,,~,0 i i i ~~~ ~~~~
...;.... ...,~~,0...

~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~~ "'~
...$0...

"""""' ~ ""' ""

126 Accounts Receivable -Tenants
..................................................................................................................................................:...................................

; $956,710 f
~........................ i............................i...................... ...................................'.....................

~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 956,710 ~~~~~~""' 
ŷ956;710 i

126,1 Allowance far DoubKul Accounts -Tenants
..................................................................................................................................................~..................

; -$42,391
.................:.........................q............................~......................

; i i E
....................q....
_ $42 91 i~ '3

~~~~~~~~~~~ ••••$42 91•••••.
..... ...... 

.3

E 126.2 Nlowance for Doubtful Accounts -Other $0 i
~............

g0
.. ............~......

^~0
...j.................. ..... ..... ........... .... 

127 Notes, Loans, &Mortgages Receivable -Current 
'................................................................................................................................................... ..................... ............. ........................i............................i...................

128 Fraud Recovery
..............................................................................................................................................i...................................d........................i............................'

` y^79,622 E 
... 

~...

................................i.... ............... 
.....i .......................... ~....i i $ 2 i

i........................1........ 
79 

;62...

........... ...q......~~...........2. , .....~ 
79 

;62........:
128,1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Fraud
...........................................................................................................................................i...................................q........................i............................i.......................i...................................i........................i....

i -x̂39,812 ;
i ...................... > 

;
................................ .....i..................F........

_ X39;812 _ 39;81 ' .~ 2
i 129 Accrued Interest Receivable 
: i...................................d.........,..............

..........i ..................b............. ............i
...................................................................................................................................................
:120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts
: ..................................................................................................................................................

x̂954,129
r...................................:........................

i............................
i y0 i

i............................

i.......................>...................................
v~0 ? $~q,541 i

i.......................i...................................
$129,516

i......................., i.......................... i..................
$0 i $1,098,188

i........................ i.........,................ c..................

L......................... S
$0 $1,098,188 E 

c......................... d
L...................................................................................................................................................i................................... .....................
i 131 Investments -Unrestricted 
..................................................................................................................................................j..................................._.....................

...i.... .................... ....................i... ... ... ...................... ..........i ........................~..........................e..................i...... ................... i

132 Investments - Restricted
....... ..................... ................... ... ...~................................ ................ .................... ........... _ ................... 

..................................................................................................................................................
135 Investments -Restricted for Payment of Current Liability 

..................................................................................................................................................:...................................

i...................................?........................ i............................

i........................... ...................... ...................................

i......................9...................................~........................ i.......................... ~.................. .........................

i........................ i..........................
142 Prapaid Expenses and Other Assets

5 ..................................................................................................................................................:....................................}........................ ............................ ......................
ggpg,272

s........................

~.....

i..................
f ^15;160 i $423,432 i

E.........................3
E X423,432

i 143 Inventories i i
..............................:. .....;..........................;..................;......................

i. .................................. .. ................................................................................................ ...................................i......
i 143.1 Allowance for Obsolete Inventories i

`

~ ......................,. 
i i

,........................;..........................;..................:..........................;
i............. ...........................................................................................................'

144 Inter Program Due From
........................y.... . ... ...... ..........................................................................................................~

.......................:
i ,
r........................7............................1......................

~ ................ .... .....;..........................;.................. ..........................
145- i $0 f41.t.........................;145 Assets Hald for Sale 

..............................................................................................................................................i................... ...............d........................i...........................: 

.............................. ......:
$496,121

....

;..................................'

............................ .................
i i

........
$4 1 i9

6.12......;` 150 Total Current Assets
..............................................................................................................................................

• ^15,837,811
i...................................

i ^y20,799,633
d........................ o...........................

~ ....................... 
$0 i $22~1gg

i...................... o...................................
$552,449

,.......................i.....~496,121
.....;..................b........

i X2,756,608 i $39,968,690 i-X14,541 $39,954,149 
i........................ i.......................... i.................. c..........................~ 

...................................................................................................................................................i...................................c........................i............................i......................o.........,.........................i........................i.................... .....i..................L..........................i
i 161 Land
..................................................................................................................................................i...................................i..... 

i $1,452,593 $54,250 ~
.... ............i............................i.......................i...................................i........................i..........................a.................c.........................a

' ~ ŷ1,506,843 $1,506,843 
162 Bulidings

p ..................................................................................................................................................i...................................
~ ~89,693,890 i i

~. ~.......................:............................:.......` i....... 
j $89,693,890 i $89,693,890 

163 Furniture, Equipment &Machinery -Dwellings
p..................................................................................................................................................i...................................?........................f............................s...................... ...................................f.......................

i ; ;
............ ... ...

;
........................ ,.......

; ; , """"""""

; 164Furniture,Equipment&Machinery-Administration...................................................................................................................................................i...................................3........................!
i $664,859 i '• i

i..........................F..................'..........................i
i $29,306 i $694167 i $694167 i

i 165 Leasehold Improvements...................................... X3,940,985
:.......................... ... ...;................... _

! i
............................. ...g........................:....... ...................:.. 

i $524 000 i $4,464 985
........... _

., ••.$4,464985
166 Accumulated Depreciation ; -577,723,107 E i i

.. .;...
i -$553,308 i -78,276,415 i ~~~~~~~~~~~ 

.., , ..
i -$78,276,415

i 167 Construction in Progress..................................................................................................................................................~...................................~........................i.
i X7,538,804

...c...
?

................

' '

............................. ....................:..........................:..................s.........................; 
i i ^7,538,804 i i .~7,538,8D

168 Infrastructure
...........................

~

:.......................:................................ ...;.................... ....................... :. ...;....
i

........... .................4....j
................. ....................................................................~

160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation....................................................................................................................................................
825,568,024

i...................................
y^54,250

~........................ ~............................
$0 $0

j.......................i...................................
SO ^y0 y^25,622,274........................ i.......................... ~.................,5D c y^25,622,274 h.. 

......................................................................:............................................................................i...................................o........................i............................j.......................;...................................i........................i..........................i..................t..........................171 Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable -Non-Current
:....................................................................................................................................................i...................................b........................i............................i.......................i...................................

E $310,042 i 
i........................i.....$310;042.....i..................b....,~,310;042....i 172 Notes, Loans, &Mortgages Receivable -Non Current -Past Due 

•: ..... .............................................................................................................................................i...................................o.....................
i 173 Grants Receivable -Non Current 

...i.... ........................i... ................... 5...................................i........................ i.......................... i..................L..........................i

174 Other Assets
.......................c............................i......................y...................................i........................i....~ ...................... ............... ................... 

...................................................................................................................................................
E 176 Investments in Joint Ventures 

i................................... ...i....i..................... ........................i................... ...~...................................i........................ i.......................... ..................3..........................i
... ............................................................................................................................................... ...................................L........................i........................... ......................5...................................i.......................
180 Total Non-Current Assets i $25,568,024 $364,292 $0 ~0 $0

i..........................i..................E.........................
$0 $25,932,316 ~0 $25,932,316 

..................................................................................................................................................i.
200 Deferfed Outflow of Resources

5 .................................................................................................................................. .............. 
; $4,646,169
:...................................:....................................................

'
f

j....................... ................................... 
8235,770

i i i

; $1,656,402 i $6,538,341 i;........................;..........................:........ 

i i

i X6,538,341

................................................................................................................................................... ................................... ........................j............................j...................... ...................................j........................~..........................'.................. .........................290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources:. .................................................................................................................................................:................................... 
': $46,052,004 i 521,163,925 i

:.........................~............................~......................:...................................;.....................,..~..........................~..................:.........................y 
50 ~ $22,189 i $788,219 i X4,413,010 i $72,439,347 t -$14,541 i $72,424,806 

.............................................................................................................................................. ...................................q........................'
E 311 Bank Overdraft

~ ............................:....................... ....~ ......,..................... ...~... ..................... ..........................'~ ..................g..........................; 

....................................................................................................................................................
3 312 Accounts Payable c= 90 Days
..............................................................................................................................................i...................................L........................i............................i.......................i...................................i......

j...................................
i $322,616

c........................ i............................
i j

i.......................~...................................
; j 

i........................ i.......................... i..................

$1 324,351
.....F..................L....

i...........................j

$324
i 313 Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due 
..: ................................... ........................................................................................................`

i i i i

.735......i.....,~,
E i E

,351
......E

i... ..
321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable

................. ...... .. .... ..: ................... ... ..........................................................................................i...................................:........................

i ...................................b........................i............................i..,....................i...................................i........................i..........................i..................i.........................5
t y56,101 i i

c
i t
i......

x^5,547 ! $220,198 $283,846 i i i$283,846
322 Accrued Compensated Absences -Current Portion
: .................................................................................................................................................. 

i X27,220
:...................................

...........................
i ~

...t....: ..................... .....................

............. ..... ...s ...
~

................... ........i........................
52,132

i.........................
i y^t4,522 $43 674

i.......
~~~~~~~~~~~ ...$43,874••••

324 Accrued Contingency Liability
..............................................................................................................................................g...................................:...... 

?
...~... ................ ............................. .....................

"""""""" """""' """""""""' 

325 Accrued Interest Payable
.

.................................................................................................................................................:...................................a........................E............................i......................?...................................~........................~..........................E.................. .........................
!

..................i............................i......................?...................................i....................... ..........................i......
"""""""" 

j 331 Accounts Payable -HUD PHA Programs

332 Account Payable -PHA Projects
5 ..................................................................................................................................................:...................................

;
... ....

;
~........................

...j ...................... .......

i.......................i...................................
"""""""'

333 Accounts Payable-Other Government '• $441,972
i............................

t
i........................ i.......................... i..................i..........................

$441
j 341 Tenant Security Deposits. ............................
:..... ..... ........................................................................................................... ................

' 83,366
~ ~

`

...................
3,000

.................. .....$441;972..... ..................c....

i i $6366 i

;972....;

i t56,366
i 342 Unearned Revenue
..

............................................................................................................................................~...................................x........................;............................;......................:...................................;........................~...........,.................................x............ ............

......... ...........',.
$97.143

: • ......................~...........................i~ ......................;...... ........................ .....;........................;...........:..............;..................:..........................;
i i X97,143 i , 97,143 



Bayonne Housing Authority (NJ012)
BAYONNE, NJ

Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit Fiscal Year End: 06/30/2024

Project Total
i 1 Business ~

i 2State/Local
` 14'879 •'
MalnsUeam ;

14.871 Housing
COCC Subtotal ELIM Totali Activities i

Vouchers '; Cholce Vouchers

5 ...................................................................................................................................................j...................................i.........................~............................j...................... ..........,........................i........................i..........................i..................i..........................s'
`• 343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt -Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue
5 i i i i i i i ~ i............................................................... ...................................................................................~
344 Current Portion of Long-term Debt- Operating Borrowings

5 `
i i i i................................................................................................................................................... ................................... ........................ ........................

'; 345 Other Current Llabilllies ~
.............. .,

""""""""""•,

i 346 Accrued Liabilities - Olhar 
..................7............................i.......................;...................................•

i i ........................:..........................F..................~.......................... 
i i i i....................................................................................................................................................i...................................o........................i............................j......

347 Inter Program -Due To
..............................................................................................................................................

~
i...................................b........................ i............................

...

:

.............5...
i ^14,541
i......... .............~................................

............................. ... j.... ....................i......................... ....... .. .....F...........................;
E $14,541 ~ $14,541 ; $0 

i 348 Loan Liability -Current
i................................... .......

~~~~~~~~ ~~~~~~~
................. .................... ...........

"~"' "'`"' 
.......................j

:.. .................................................................................................................................................
310 Total Current Liabilities
: ........................................................:.........................................................................................

` $950,418
i...................................:........................

....... i.........
y0

i............................

........
$0

i.......................i..................................,
i $1q,541
i...:...................:...................................

510,679
i........................
$236,455

i..................... ...s...

i.......................... i..................
ŷ1,212,093 j -$14,541 
.................... ..............p...

i..........................

. 
$1,197.55 
................. 2... S

................................................................................................................................................... ...................................b........................f........................... 
i 351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current-Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue
p..................................................................................................................................................E...................................i........................ i............................

.......................i..............................,....i........................E..........................i..................L.........................e

i..,......,............. ..........................
i 352 Long-term Debl, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings

i......................3................................... i........,.........i......................... J

353 Non-current Liabilities -Other ; """""""" 
..................................................................................................................................................:...................................s........................i............,..............
354 Accrued Compensated Absences -Non Current

5 ..................................................................................................................................................:...................................
; X244,985

~..................,..

i.......................i...................................i,.......................i.......................,..i.................. .........................5
X19,191 X130,694

j.......
X394,870 ; ; $394,870

[ 355 Loan Liability -Non Current
..................................................................................................................................................j...................................;......................... 

;
.....................

; ;
................ 

;
................................ ...........:........

"""""""' 

356 FASB 5 Liabilities
(............................~...................... ................................ 

i E E i ~~~'~~~~ 
....................j..........................i..............

i
......................y

i i ...................................................................................................................................................'
357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities 
............ . . .

~...................................r........................~............................~.......................q..........................
$15,433,728 ; ' y630,955

......p.....................
.

...~ 778,321 ..........................`..................'......,...................'320,843,OD4 i ,~20,843,OD4
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities
..............................................................................................................................................

~ ........................... 
X15,678,713

i...................................

~.............. ~............................~.......................~...................................i......:.................n.........................i..................
E $0 i
o........................ i...........................,

$0 i $0 i
i.......................;...................................;........................

$650,146 ~Cq,g09,015 $21,237,874 t $0
n......................... i..................

p ......................... j

$21,237,874 
r...........................; 

....................................................................................................................................................i...................................o........................i............................i.......................i.......................E 300 Total Liabilities
: ..................................................................................................................................................

$16,629,131
i...................................

gp
e......................., i...........................,

$0 $14,541 '
i.......................i...................................

... ......
$660,825

i........................i....
i y~5,145,470
i.......................,
i

......................i..................4..........................;
i .F22,449,967 -x̂14,541
i.......................... a.................

^22,435,426 i 
c........................, u

.. .. . .................... .:.......... ................... .. ..........................................................................................i,................................d........................i............................i.......................
400 Deferred Inflow of Resources

.. 
; X7,590,610

> ...................................i........................i..........................i..................L,........................5
i x̂472,704 X2,360,451

i i

$10,423,765 i

i i

$10,423,765 i 

...................................................................................................................................................e...................................E........................i........................... .......................e...................................i........................t..........................i.................. .........................
508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets X25,568,024

..................................g........................;.......
X54,250 30 $0 $0 $0 $25,622,274 $25,622,274 

511.4 Restricted Nel Position
..................................................................................................................................................i...................................?........................i............................

i $0 i $p
..

...$0...
............

.̀....$7,648....' ....51.138... ...$0..i .....$8,786 ...... ...........i i _ ....88,786...... i
512.4 Unrestncled Net Position
..................................................................................................................................................:....................................: 

t -̂ 3,735,761 ~ $21,109,675: ~0 ~ ~^0 -$346,448 j _$3,092,911 i $13,934,555 i $13,934 555 i 
513 Total Equity - Nel Assets /Position

5 ..................................................................................................................................................:...................................:.........................~............................ ......................
` $21,632,263

.....................................................:...................... ...................................
': $21,163,925 E $0 ^y7,648 i

~...................................p........................;..........................i..................;...........................;
-X345,310

~........................:............,............,
; -$3,092,911

i..................
i $39,565,615 E $0

s................:........:
; 339,565,615

y...................................................................................................................................................j...................................i.........................j............................~.......................r...................................~........................j..........................j.................. .........................
600 Total Liabilities, Deferred InFlows of Resources and Equity-Net
. ...................................................................................................................................................................................:........................,............................t.......................:...................................~........................

? $46,052,004 i X21,163,925 $0 ; $22,189 E 5768,219 84,413,010 S 572,439,347 i -X14,541
t..........................;.............................................:

X72,424,806 
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Bayonne Housing Authority (NJ012)
BAYONNE, NJ

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audil Fiscal Year End: 06/30/2024
.............................. ................ ..................

~Tolal

k...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................~................... ...

Protect Total
~Activillles j Z Slele/Local ' Maln s eam i COCC Subtotal i

1
ELIM ~

i
Vouchers i

~
ChoBce Vouchers ~

~ ~

j 70300 Nel Tenant Rental Revenue ;
.....................................

$7,688,828 !
c.......................... i.................................

~
v........................ i.......

...........................

$7,888,928 ; $7,688,928 E

70400 Tenent Revenue -other t
.............................................................................................................................................................i......................................n.

$124,597 ' °.........................:................................ .......................:......................................~........
°

...y....
.................. 

....p
~ ..................o.......

................... 
~....i.....................i +~ 124.59

....a...................... 
5 24.597

70500 Total Tenant Revenue 
p...............................................................................................................................................................i.

$7,811.525 $0 ~ SD 50 ~
i

$0 $0 i $7~811~525........:....

... ....... ...................

......50...... 
..~...~7,~811~525

.. ....g......................

' 70600 HUD PHA O eretln9 Grants 
........~

6~629,054
........ 

l..................................... P i
................................i......................... ......................................i..........................i...........................~.........................

j................................s........................:........i $802,873 ~ $3,894,555 $11,326,482 ~

i
i..........................p
$11,326,482 ......................................................................................................................:...................................... .........................

~ 70610 Ca I~el Granls 
~ .................... p..... ............................................................................................................................... ....i........

54806,528
....... ....v... ................... .............. ......I.... ;.... 

..............................:..........................:..........................!.......

E i $4.806,528
............... 

,...~~.4,806~528 i

70710 Management Fee
...............................................................................................................................................................b.................................... '.........................1.

...... .......C....................
i 1

...

~ ~

.............................. ..............................p..........................
~ 51~171~070

................... 
$i~t7i~o7o

......~..........................F
_ $1J71~o7a ~ 50

1 70720 Asset Management Fee i
h ......................... ................ 

3
..................................~..........................i....................... ............... j

~~~~~~7~~~~~~~~~~~~~""~~~~~~~~~~
p..............................................................................................................................................................~ ....................................., 
70730 Book Keeping Fee} .....................................................................................................................................................................................................i........................._~.................................~......................._~.....................................,

..........................i.....,...........................E......................_i......................................i....
` ; S $138,053

~.......................... ........................._i.....................! $138,053
..

-$138,053 ! $0 
E

70740 Front Line Service Fee ,

....................

'70750, other Fees ~
~ 
~ j

~ 
~ ~ , 

. ..................................................................................................................... .....................................i.
70700 Total Fee Revenue I

i• .....................................~...........................................................c.......................

~. .............,.......... i.................................L.........................
; ~

.....................................0
; '

~......................................6.51,309,123
. ................. . .... ................ ' ... .... .... .... .... .... ....i 
. . ....~ ..........................i.. ~j 51~309~123...j...~.1 ,309.123 

~. ~~ ....;.....~ ................... . . ....................

E 70800 Othef Government Granis E i ~ x^86,506 ~ $86,506 t I $86,506
; 71100 Investment income -Unrestricted j
.............................................................................................................................................................. ~......................................

; ~g~p~~p0 ; $27
a..........................:.................................

~
c..........................................................

$19,736 $704,117 $1,538,000 j $1,536,000 
j 71200 Modgage Interest Income 

~ 
, '

................ ......t 

i....
...........................:.........................:..........................:
f

..............................................................................................................................................................~. 
.....................................~

71300 Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale ~
6....................... i .................................o.......
~ t

... 
.. .. ..... ....i....

~.......................j......................................i.....................................................i......................

.............................. .... .................. ....t.... ................... ................. .................. 
~~~~

f
t......................................................................................................................................................................................................r..........................i.................................
71310 Cos( of Sale of Assets `E............................................................................................................................................................._i......................................c.' i

..................

i 71400 Fraud Recovery 
?

:...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................~...........................t.................................i........................

.........................s...........................E ............ ....i....

i........

......
..532,244

....... ....:...................... ....i.. 
....532,244

.....'...................... ~.....
.~32,2

44.....

71500 Other Revenue ; 5717.754 §6,893 $2,727,819 ...... .................. 1...$2,846,266 ..~..........................[...$2,846,266
i 71600 Galn or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets i...............................................................................................................................................................~......................................~.........................i................................. .......................i.................................. S 41,504 $41,504 € 541,504 
72000 Investment Income-Residcted

.................. ................... ................. ..................

70000 Total Revenue ,
..............................................................................................................................................................~......................................; 

§19,364,861

Pi

I 5812,120 593,426
..........................~.................................; 

j 5802,873 '
........................i......................................:......................

56,668,154 $2,054,744....~....I $29,796,178
...................

-57,309,123 528,487,055 
................. .................

i
91100 AdmiNslrative Salaries..................................................................................................................................................................................................... ..........................i................................._........................~..............

5262,748

i i
i ~ .... ~ ...........................

i $40,000
.... .......

$87,505
....... ....j....................
$558,504?.

.................
S948,757....~...

................. .................... i.. 
... 948,757 ...~S

91200 Audilin9 Fees ; $14,187 I ' 5500 ~
i......................................~..........................i...........................j......................... ..........................F

$2,500........ .. 
................

....$17,187 .....{...
................. 

......$17,187......~ ............................................................................................................................................................_j......................................L..........................i.................................v.......................
:91300 Management Feei ...............................................................................................................................................................i................. .

$1,126,910
....................' 

'
p .......................... { ....... 

......................

i 544,1sa ; $1,171,070 i -51,171,070 $o
( 91310 Book-keeping Fee ~
...............................................................................................................................................................} ....................................._.........................

$110.453
j.............................

~......g4,3B0 ....; ........523,220.... 
.. ...... . .

..... ... ....9738,053...;....-$138,053..,.. .......50......
91400 Advertising and Marketing.............................................................................................................................................................. ......................................~..........................j.................................t.........................i...................................._i..........................~....................._...

;
................ .............................. .................. ...................

i.........................

................. .. .
~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~" 

91500 Employee Benefit contributions-Adminislral(ve ~
..............................................................................................................................................................p....................................._........................_;.................................c....................

$137,403 ~ ( $19,238 552,427

.....y54,713....
... ...

E $2q,gg8

.....$164,177...,.....$747,637...=

~ $233,564
i..........................i'
3233,564 i

: 91600 OfFlce Expenses
..............................................................................................................................................................~......................................«..........................i.................................i...................

$528.747 . ................. .....$747,637....; 
:, 91700 Legal Expense
5 .............................................................................................................................................................. ~......................................

$306,300
p.......................... i.................................

....I....

r........................ j.........

... ...... ....`...
$14,184

' 
$5,840 $326,324

.................
$328,324

?.....
.~31~7

31.....j
91800 Travel
! ........................................................................................................ 

~..........$17;870 i ~ j i
.....~~ ................... ....~......
2,972 

............... .....j......
~ 510,889

.............. .....: .... 
~~ $31.731 E

................. ................

.......................................................i. 
91810 Allocated Overhead

...............p..........................~..............................._.......................

i........

.............................. .................E ................... ....~...

i....

................. ......................q....

t ..............................................................................................................................................................i......................................E...........................i.................................'........................
91900 Other j $416,394 ; 3

...
...§31,570.... ....i....

.................. ....i..
...$447,964 ....

................. .....~.. 
...$447,964....

91000 Total Operating-AdmlNstrative
:.............................................................................................................................................................. ̀......................................

$2,921,012 + t~0 50
E.......................... i................................. •; $64,118 ?4........................ ~......................................

$313,251 $763,906~.........................
E $4,062,287 -$1,309,123 E 52,753,164 i......................... _ ~...

92000 Asset Management Fee
r ...............i......................................,.........................

3......

~........................._........................ .........................
p.............................................................................................................................................................i......................................_..........................j.................................c.......................
:92100 Tenant Services -Salaries i
> ..............................................................................................................................................................j......................................~...........................j.................................E.

5409,485
........... i..................................

.....§151,702... . 
... ..

.....§63,127.....:.....$624.294....;.
.............

.... ......$624,294....,
92200 Relocation Costs E ; ; ~

....i...................... ....i....

~..........................

................... ....I.... 

~......

................. ..................

............................................................................................................................................................ _ j......................................
:92300 Employee Benefit Contributions -Tenant Services ;

.......................................................................................................~......................................v.........................
$274,044

_.......................... j.................................

i................................._.

L........................ j.....................................i

n....
995,572

~

i.... 
5g2,2q8

i j....
$411,864

i i....

.. .
$411,864

92400 Tenant Services-Other j
............................................................................................................................................................... 

.............•......•
$175,061

•.
. ............. ........................_~................................~......................_i......................................j..........................!

$93,426
.. ...

i i
.......................... .... .................. ....

~
..........................

26~..., 5..., 8;487....:....
............. .....5.... ... 

92500 Total Tenant Services I $858,570 E go ! 593,426~
50 ? 5247,274 $105,375 $1,304,645 j

.... .. .5268;487.. .... .....9...... .. 
$0 j 51,304,645 j 

.............................................................................................................................................................. i......................................i...........................i.............................
93100 Water j
............................................................................................................................................................._~......................................!.

$1 ~591~098
....'.....

t { E < 
................

i

.............................. ....i...................... ....i.........

i
............. 

...~....

i 51,591 X098 ~
.................. .._i.... 

......... .......57,591098 •,

• 93200 Electricity $987~064 
. .........................~................................_...........................................................

~ 344,527 ` $1,011,591
..................

~ $1,071,597 j ...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................i..........................f.................................c....................... 
93300 Gas
..............................................................................................................................................................i......................................•

5472.538 ~
................... .............................F.......................;..................................

......................................1........................ .i........
E ; i 52.159 5474.897....•.

................. 
.̀....$474,697....,

:93400 Fuel ' ' ~ i
...~...................... .. ....................... ................. ..................

............................................................. ................................................................................................. j...................................... ..........................
93500 Labor ? v195,837

i...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................•

j................................. ........................
I j
~ ...........................i.................................i........................

i..................................
f I

i....
....`....

..................
. .. 

.. i....
$195.831 ~

................. ....}.. 
................$195,831.... .

93600 Sewer i i ~
`

.............................. ....i...................... ....i.... 

`

................... j

~

................. .................. ....

..............................................................................................................................................................j...................................... ..........................~................................._.
j 93700 Employee Benefit Contributions- lJfilitles ;
.............................................................................................................................................................. i......................................

$131,065
c.......................... i.................................'c......................

.................
i..................................
.................................f .....................

.......!.....................
....9131,065 1

i.... 
.....$131,065 ...

93800 Other Utilities Expense
....................................................................................................................................................................................d..........................j.................................~........................i......................................

_ ....r...................... ....I....

j..........................i..........................'.......

................... ... ................. ..................

93000 Total U(Ililies E
p ............................................................................................................................................................. i......................................?.

{

$3,357,596 t 
§~ i $0

i .........................i.................................p.......................;......................................,..........................~.................i $0 j $0 ! $46,686 ! 53404,282 i.._;....
~~~~~ ~~~~~~~50 

j...
53,404~282

................. ......................s.... ....; 

...............................................................................................................................................................i. ....................................
94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations-Labor

.. .............................
$1,877,703

... ..

i
i........................... i.................................

i
E......................... ~ .................................. ....i...................... ....i...

5104165
.... .. .

i $1~981~888 
..{..................... 

...~1~981~888
..{..................

~ 94200 Ordinary Melntenance and Operations- Materiels and Ofher..............................................................................................................................................................p.....................................p......................... 
5762,263

................... .................... ..
~
;.................................L.......................i......................................i..........................i...........................i.........................d..........................F

~ $1,119 9763,382 ~ i $763,382 E
94300 Ordinary Maintenance and operagons Contracts ;
...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................'

$878,698 r } i E 5736 i 5877.434 5877.434
•. 94500 Employee Benefit Conlribulions - Orcllnery Maintenance 'p ..............................................................................................................................................................?......................................'.

$973 055
t... ....;....................... .............................{.....................

'..........................................................:......................_,..................................

... ;....
i

.............................. ....y........
t $53,992

.... ~.........................~..........................
~ 51~027~047 i 51~027~047 i

94000 Total Melnlenence
.......................................................................................................................................................i.... ........ ...

...54;469719
....

. 
i

....i ..... ..... ....i.... ......... ̀~~....... ..........5~.......... .... ......
50
....i .... . .. ...... i......................................

....;......
50

............... ....i... 

r.. 
5160032
............................ 

....................
$
4~849~751...'..

~

... ..... .. ...................... ~a ... 
...:...~4,649~751 i

.............................................................................................................................................................. ~
95100 Protective Services -Labor j
............................................................................................................................................................... ~......................................

$25,009
~ .........................j.................................?.
~
c........................., i.................................L........................ 

j $1.624
i..........................

i

3 526,633 ~ E
i.........................

..

526,633 E 
95200 Protective Services -Other Contract Costs
............................................................................................................................................................. p....................................i

$132,000 ( ;
...........................3................................. 

~......................................
i ~

o..........................
~ $132,000

v .......................... i
$132000 

~ 
!95300 Protective Services-Other j

........................;..................,...................~ .........................;...........................I..................... 
~~

..............................................................................................................................................................~......................................p..........................i.................................:.........................i......................................:..........................
955D0 Employee Benefit Contributions -Protective Services j

> ...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................o..........................i.................................~......................._i......................................i..........................p.........................
$16,739 ~ ~ $1,087

i...~......................i.........................?..........................i
$17,826 E ~ $77,826 E 

95000 Total Protective Services !
..............................................................................................................................................................i........................,.............
i

....'
$173,748 ~0 50

~........................_j.................................`..............................................................i......................
g0

i i

50 $2,711

i

i..........................~........................_i
j 5176,459
... ................ .

$0 $176,459 

i...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................
96110 Properly Insurance E
.................. ..........................................................................................................................................:......................................

i
G........................_i.................................i.........................i......................................i.......

° 
i E

! ...............
i

........

i....

...................

j....

.................. ..................

j 96120 Liability Insurance
~ .......................... i.................................; c... ................. .... ~...................... ........... .... .................. .... ................... .._~....

~........................

.................. ..................

i......................p..........................................................................................................................................................._;......................................c............................................................e.......................n......................................e..........................i..........................
~ 96130 Workmen's Compensallon
............................................................................................................................................................. i......................................

E 
i........................ _

96140 All Other Insurance ; X753,034
i...........................1.............,...................
( ~

................................................................
E $8,603 ~ $22,686

i....... .......I .....................
5784,323 ~ ~ $784,323

96100 Talal Insurance Premiums 5753,034 ; §0 50 ; $0 i $8,803 $22,686 i $784,323 E $0 ~ $784,323 i



Bayonne Housing Authority (NJ012)
BAYONNE, NJ

Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

Submission Type: Audited/Single Audit Fiscal Year End: 06/30/2024
............................. .................. ....................~..........................r......................

~ È Protect Tolal 1 Business ~ ~4'8~9 i
! 2Slale/Local (Mainstream;Aclivilles ! ,

14.871 Housing
Choice Vouchers

! COCC
;

'
Subtotal ~ ELIM

.~

! !
Tolal j

..............................................................................................................................................................j......................................t.................~.......'.................................?..

ouc e 
h

V.........._~.._i.................................. 

..........................................:....~ .................................................................................................................i......................................°
96200 Othar General Expenses
..............................................................................................................................................................

;
i......................................'.

y.......................... ~.................................1........................~
~ ~ 

p...........................
,

..............................j.......................... ....

$3,875 ...... ......................j ....s168,325....1.....................

~

.....................:......

.....$168,325 ...~
j 96210 Compensated Absences
p............................... ..

i $36,180
.....................................j.................................5....................

.
...'?,164:450

....... ~. ................................`........................i......................................i..........................i..........................:........................'..........................~ 
i ; F •. i $1,607 537,787 ~ M $37,787

96300 Payments In Liau o(Taxes
..............................................................................................................................................................

5441.972 
.....................................

i i
f...........................i.................................i......................... .......

.........
i

.............................. ....E ..................... ....i 

!
.......................... :...
I $441972 i

................. ............. 
i 

$441972...;

; 96400 Bad debt-Tenenl Ren~s 
................................................................................................. c

5359,618 
...............................~............. ....... ...,~.....~

359618
....x....

I ~ ~

................. ................. F
5359.818 

j 86500 Bad debt - Mofl9ages
:..............................................................................................................................................................i.

.............. ....j....
~ i

.............................. ....;...................... ...;.... ................... ................. ......................~

E
`96600, Bed debt-Olher 

..............................
~
............................ . 

.................. .........................
` `

................. .............................. ...................... ................... .....I.......
~

............... ..................
.................................................................................................................................... ...

96800 Severance Expense
i.... ........i 
~

...........................~................................. ....................
, t

~ .............................. ......................~..........................~.........................;.........................j

96000 Total Other General Expenses
.....................................................................................................................................................................................................

,..........5837,770 .........~ i •
..........................:................................._.
$164,450 ~ 50

5...........................i.................................
e ........_;.
E $0 j
i.........................i......................................................,.........~...........................i....................

$3,875 j 81,607 $1,007,702 i,
.................:......
$0 $1,007,702 i.....i.... .................. 

..................................................................................................................................................................................................... ......................... 
96710 Interest o(Modgege (or Bonds) Payable
...............................................................................................................................................................~......................................c.........................

I
.................................~.......................

E
i.................................i........................ 

~.....................................

i......................................1..........................'..........................'..................

~......................
~ ~~~~~~~~~

................. ... ~.... 
~ ~ """""""'" """""""'"'

96720 Inleresl on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term)...............................................................................................................................................................p
j i 

i i '
j "'

~ .... .... i
"""""""""

96730 Amortization of Bond Issue Costs E
.....................................'e..........................~.................................r........................

; j
j......................................

;
...............j....... ....i.... ................... ?............ 

"""""
...~... 

""""""""" 
..............................................................................................................................................................i...................................... ..........................i.................................?

~ 96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortizallon Cost
.. ..........................................................................................................................................................i......................................e..........................i.................................l........................

j 50 ~ gp $0
....................... l......................................E.......

$0
i......................................i..........................1..........................

$0
... ....i....

~0
.... ... ....~....

~ y0
i... 

...
$0

,................
$0 ~.~~~

..................
...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................1.........................3.................................i.......................'.......................
96900 Talal Operagn9 ExpensesC.............................................................................................................................................................

~ $13,391,449
~...................................... 5164,450 593,428

L.......................... i.................................4.......................
$64,118

I ...

....,
5573,003

...................................

'
i
y1,103,003

~..........................
? $15,389,449' -$7,309,123: $14 080 326. i... .................... ................. ..................

E...............................................................................................................................................................j......................................'......................... 
97000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses

p...............................................................................................................................................................:.....................................
$5,973,412

?.................................'.......................
~ gfi47,670 ~ 50
q.......................... p................................

i

!.............
c 8738,755 ~
p........................:......................................
i i

..`
56,095,151 $951,741

i.....

3

~ $14,406,729 ~ 50 ~ $14 q06 729
...............

i...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................'
'; 97100 E~draordlnary Maintenance

~ ........................... i.................................i....................... _ i......................................
i

~ ................i......
................... ................. : ......................~ ...............................................................................................................................................................j......................................~..........................j.................................!.......................

~ 97200 Casually Losses-Non-capilalized 
i......................................i.......................... .........................1.........................?..........................i

~..................
97300 Housln9 Assistance Payments

' .....................................1..........................(.................................~.
~ i ; ; $716,481 ..............53,546,041 .....

.................
'

i

~...g4,262,522 ..~..................... ..a...$4,282,522
97350 HAP Portablli~y-In ; ; ; : .......................~.........$2,545,457........1........ ...$2,545,457 ~ ~.. .. .. ...$2,545,457 {
97400 Depreciation Expense
.............................................................................................................................................................:r.....................................E..........................

52,009.650
i.

.............
i i

.............................. ..................
e

................. 
~ 52.009,650 ..:...~2,009~650 j

97500 Fraud Losses 
................................7.........................f......................................1...................... ................... ................. .................. ....

p...............................................................................................................................................................j......................................5.........................'................................._.
i 97600 Capital Outlays -Governmental Funds
i............................................................................................................................................................._i......................................v.........................

i i E
i.................................c.......................

; ~ """""""' """""""""

97700 debt Principal Payment- Governmental Funds !
i......................................i..........................`......................

"~~~~~~""""
...q.... .... j
"""""""""

c...............................................................................................................................................................
9780D Dwelling Units Rent Expense

~.................................................................I.................................E 
! ~ i

....................... ......................................'..........................'.......................
~ ~ ~ ' ..` ........................ ...................... 

............................................................................................................................................................... 
90000 Total Expenses
.

.............................................................................................................................................................I......................................E...........................i.................................i.........................i......................................f.....................................................6......................._i........................_

!...................................... ..........................~................................. ........................j......................................!..........................i........................._i......................... ..........................?
$15,401,099 ; $164,450 ; 593,426 j $780,599 E 56,664,501 ; $1,103,003 $24,207,078 E -$1,309,123 E $22,897,955 E 

i 
...............................................................................................................................................................j...................................... 
10010 Operating Transfer In
...............................................................................................................................................................~......................................'

..........................j................................. ......., 
t

............. ....;....
i i

.............................. ...?...................... ....~... ....i.... ................... ................. _ ..................

: 10020 Operating transfer Oul........................................~......................................................................................................................j,.....................................~..........................'............................... 

p ..........................i.................................L... ....i.....................

'.......................!......................................'...

.............................. ....°... .................. ....~...................... .................

E.... 

..................5.... ...i

10030 Operating Transfers (roMto Primary Government..............................................................................................................................................................
i
t.

i ~ r ~
...

~ 
. ...................j....... ...

................ .....................~..........................'

10040 Operating Transfers froMto Component Unil
:.............................................. I.................................i........................

............
""""""" """"""""" 

.................................................................................................................i......................................•. 
10050 Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds

p....................................................................................................................................................................................................

i .........................

~.................................

~......................................~........................_~..........................
i

i.......
""""""" """""""""

1006D Proceeds from Property Sales i
................ ...................................... . ...

: .........................., L....... .............
i

.............................. ..................
I

................... .................
i i

.................. 
i i .......................................................................................................................................~..........................;.................................H........................~..................................

10070 6Araordinary Items, Nel GaiNLoss ! ?
E

.... ............ .p... ....
..... ................... .................

i.... ....i....
..................

j 10080 Special Items (Net Galn/Loss)
.................. ......................... 

°

.....................E......................................;..........................:t.......

~ °

.... .................

}

..................

p...............................................................................................................................................................i...................................._L.
10091 Inter ProJecl Excess Cash Transfer In.. ..........................................................................................................................................................._i......................................i...........................i.................................i........................

........................ :................................. .......................
; ;

j......................................c.......................
;

(.... ........... ........... j.......
""""""" """"""""" 

j 10092 Inter Protect Excess Cesh Transfer Out i i
!.................................!

i......................................i........
i i ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~i

... i....
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~""'~""""

.... i.... 
""~"~~~""""

..............................................................................................................................................................j......................................E......................... 
E 14093 Transfers between Program and ProJecl- In ~...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................~.........................~.................................4.......................

....................... ~.....................................'•.........................
;

i......... ... j.... 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~"""'

10094 Transfers between Protect and Program -Out '
~.

i......................................I..........................i..........................°.... 
~~~~~""""""t """"""""'~ 

..............................................................................................................................................................i !E 10100. Total Other financing Sources (Uses) ;
...............................................................................................................................................~...................................... ..........................i................................. ........................~......................................l...........~~.~....................._5~...........;c

..................
SO E igp $0

i i

i s~0

i

$0
... ............... ....i....

~
............. ... ....... ... ...

~ [

~

..... ..
$0....................

........ ..... ....j 
~0
............. 

i................................................................................................................................................................i.
10000 Excess (~eficlency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses E

.....................................i..........................
$3,983,762

i..........................
$647,670 ` 50

.......i. ~
~$22,27q

.... 
$3,653 8951,741

.........................~ S5,589,100 ~.................. .................
$0 ~ y5 589 100

..................
i...............................................................................................................................................................i......................................L..........................i..................,..............°...............
N 020 Required Annual Debl Pdncfpal Payments i
:................................................................................................................................................................ 50

....................................~..........................~.................................~........................i........
E g0 $0

.... ?... ~.... 
I 50 

....p 
$0

... ............. ....i.... .. 
50 SO 

i ....$o.... ...

~ 11030 Beginning EgWty ~ 516,615,288 E 520.516,255 j 50 j $0
..............................F..........
.5325,120

......... ..:.
j -$3,991,223'

~ ......... ......... , .................
~y32,815,200 ~...

...... ........... ;
.x..$32,815,200 j

; 11040 Pdor Period AdJustmenls, Equity Transfers and Corteclion of Ertors> ...............................................................................................................................................................e.....................................i........................._i.................................
$1,253,273 -514,626 i 

i.........................i......................................i..........................~..................................................._1..........................F
-S23,843 -$53,429 $1,161,315 ~

4
j y7,161,315 E 

( 11050 Changes in Compensated Absence Balance
........................................................................ i ~ e i ~ i i ' i
11060 Changes In Contingent Liability Balance
...............................................................................................................................................................j......................................~...........................I.................................L.......................

........................... ................. ................... ................. .................. 
....~

11070 Changes In Unrecognized Pension Transition LIa6llily ~ i f
i......................................i..........................°.......................
~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

........................................................................................................................................... ......................................~......................... 
11080 Changes 1n Special TerMSaverance Benefits Llablliry ~...............................................................................................................................................................;......................................

;.................................~........................i......................................~..........................1........................._......................._..........................
; ;
t..........................

; }
i....................................................

•, 11090 Changes In Allowance for Doubtful Accaun~s-Dwelling Rents 
~.................................t................................... _.................................................... i..........................

..............................................................................................................................................................i......................................i........................._i.................................i........................~ 11100 Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts-Other ;
i.................................. ...i...................... ....i.... 

t
................... ............. ~.... 

~
............~ ..........................F

i............................................................................................................................................................_:.
i 11170 Adminisirative Fee Equity `..............................................................................................................................................................:...................................... ~ ..-$346,448 ...... ................. ...-$346,448...... ................. !....-$346,448..., f...........................................................f......................_................................,........
11180 Housing Assistance Payments Eqully t
.............................................................................................................................................................. ~

~
~

................. ._t ....
~ j

..... ......... ......... .. .... ....j....
51138

.................. ...
~
~

i........... ........ ......... .....................q.......s
$1.138

................j
1138

{~ 11190 Unit Months Available. ............................................................................................................................................................ 3.
.............15264

............_..........................i................................;.........................;......
~ i 600 '

,

..... .3096 .......... ........p.......
~

......18960...... .................i .......18960......! .....................................i...........................i.................................o........................i..................................
! 11210 Number of Unil Months Leased ............14727 :, 3096 ....~... 

.... 
....p ...........j .......18406...•..

j 
................. .......18406 ..... 

` 
3 11270 Excess Cash
:........... . .... °........................... ....i......... . ..........................................................................................................

.............:......

...513,404743................ ....c....~ .................. ... i....

, .......
583

.... ........... ................ ................. .... ............. .................•
gi3~404~743 

:.... _ ....................
$13,404,743

i 11610 Land Purchases
5 ............................................................................................................................................................... ~.'................~.~ .................

.........................
i i
F.......................... ~........

....L... ....i....................
i i

.............................. ....i.... .. ...... .....p..........................
i 

..~Q.... ~O ~......................... .. ...€...... ...~0...

: 11620 BuIlding Purchases
. ........... .................................................... ........................................ ... ...................................................i......................................_..........................i........................................................_k.......

5o f .........................p... ....,.... ................. .............................. .......~o...... ........So ...... .................

i....

.......~0......

11630 Furniture & Equipment-Dwelling Purchases `t .............................................................................................................................................................. ~......................................
$D

'•~.....,..................... ~
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~ ~~~ ~~~

'.........~0.....

.. .... ...
'~~ ""~ ~" ~""""""""

~ 50 
i.... 

"' "" """I
~a....

11640 Furniture & Equipment-Admin~slrative Purchases.............................................................................................................................................................. ~,
535.492

. ...............................f.

~ ~ .................
... ....~....

i ~ .............................. 
....{. ....~......
! 50

.....
............... .................' S35~492 i

i......~~.35,492.....~
............

~ 11650 Leasehold Improvements Purchases
p............................................................................................................................................................... i......................................

.............~o............ .................. ......................... 

c.......................... i.................................L....................

.....................E................................. .......~,~...... .......~o...........`........................, ............0......

~
11660 Infrastructure Puroheses 50...................t..........................;..............................._~...i

....~....
i

.............................. ....i....... .....
i So

........ ... .................~ ....~o.... .....i....... .....E ~o... 
'

j 13510 CFFP Debl Service Payments fp ...............................................................................................................................................................i.
50

..................................... ..........................:.................................i........................j.......~ i 
................ .............................. ... ..

i 5o
... .......~..........................;...........~0..........;

i So
i 13901 Replacement Housing Factor Funds ; tip ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~~ ~~ ~~~ "' "'~~~"""""' "'

30



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF BAYONNE
Bayonne, New Jersey

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

LOW INCOME HOUSING PROGRAM

Low Rent Public Housing (CFDA # 14.850)

CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM CLUSTER

Capital Fund Program (CFDA# 14.872)

HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS PROGRAM

Mainstream Vouchers (CFDA # 14.879)

Section 8 Voucher Program (CFDA# 14.871)

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Funds
Expended

$ 6,130,160

5, 305,422

802,873

3,894,555

$ 16,133,010

Basis of Presentation -The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and is presented in accordance with the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of the general purpose financial statements.

2. There were no subrecipient activities during the audit period.

3. The Authority has elected not to use the 10% de minimis cost rate.

4. The Authority received no non-cash assistance.

5. The Authority did not have any HUD issued mortgages or loans.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Bayonne, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
("the Authority") as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated January 14, 2025.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis, A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. The report is an integral 'part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

,; ~ .

POLCARI &COMPANY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Wayne, New Jersey
January 14, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Bayonne, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne's (the "Authority") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Authority's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Housing Authority
of the City of Bayonne's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the years ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major program. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination of the Authority's compliance with the compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management on Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Authority's federal
programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and to express an opinion on the
Authority's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

(Continued)

higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.: Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above is considered material if there a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Authority's compliance
with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

I n performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the Authority's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses internal over
compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that have not been identified. Our audit
was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

POLCARI &COMPANY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Wayne, New Jersey
January 14, 2025
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Housing Authority of the City of Bayonne
Bayonne, New Jersey

June 30, 2024

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SECTION 1 -SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unmodified

I nternal Control over Financial Reporting:
Material Weakness Identified? yes X no
Significant Deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported

Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements Noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over Major Programs:
Material Weakness Identified? yes X no
Significant Deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported

Type of audit report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) yes X no

Identification of Major Programs

CFDA
Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.850 Low Rent Public Housing
14.872 Public Housing Capital Fund Program

Dollar Threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B Programs 750 000

Auditee qualified as low-risk? X yes no
SECTION 2 —FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None.

SECTION 3 —FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None.
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